
AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 P.M., MAY 23, 2012 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC12-03 

1.  ROLL CALL:  
 
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
 
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None 
 
3.  MINUTES: 
 
Approval of March 27, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes. 
 
4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
This is a time for public comments for items that are not listed on this agenda.  Comments should be brief.  If you have an 
item that will require extended discussion, please request the item be scheduled on a future agenda. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

For each of the following items, the public will be given an opportunity to speak.  After a Staff Report, the Chair will 
open the Public Hearing.  At that time, the applicant will be allowed to make a presentation.  Members of the public will 
then be allowed to speak.  After all have spoken, the applicant is allowed to respond to issues raised by the public, after 
which the Public Hearing is normally closed.  Comments should be brief and to the point.  The Chair reserves the right 
to limit repetitious or non-related comments.  The public is reminded that all decisions of the Planning Commission are 
appealable to the City Council by filing a written Notice of Appeal with the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days. 

 

 A. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit 

Application No. UP11/12-008: To Amend the Existing Conditions of Approval to Allow Signage on 

the Canopy at 299 Marina Boulevard, APN 0032-411-040 
 

  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC12-___-. 
 
6.  GENERAL BUSINESS:  Action to be taken where appropriate. 
 
 General Plan Update 
 
7.  COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

 A. Staff 

 B. Commissioners 

 C. Agenda Forecast 

 

8.  ADJOURN. 

 

a&m/20120523.spca 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 P.M., MARCH 27, 2012 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC12-01 

1.  ROLL CALL:  
 
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
 
Commissioner Adeva was absent. 
 
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
None 
 
3.  MINUTES: 
 
Commissioner Wade indicated that the word “be” was left out of the corrections to the minutes of November 29, 
2011.  Commissioner Ramos moved to approve the December 13, 2011, Planning Commission Minutes as corrected. 
 Commissioner Mirador seconded the motion.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit 

Application No. UP11/12-007 to Allow a Church and Associated Activities at 40 Buena Vista, APN 0032-

412-050. 

 

John Kearns presented the staff report.  Mr. Kearns gave a brief background on the building.  He explained that the 

existing church and the former childcare facility had a shared parking agreement and both uses co-existed for many 

years.  Mr. Kearns further stated that because the Fairfield Spanish SDA Church holds worship on Saturday and the 

First Christian Church on Sunday there should not be issues with parking.   

 

Chairperson Clemente opened the Public Hearing 

 

Commissioner Harris asked for clarification that the church will meet the minimum ½ acre parcel site required in 

Section 18.66.200 and if it includes the parking lot?  Mr. Kearns confirmed that it did. 

 

Commissioner Wade stated that the letter submitted mentions the homeless. 

 

Paul Guevara, Pastor, stated that they do no plan to administer to any homeless at the church site.  Any ministry or 

assistance will be done offsite. 

 



Planning Commission Agenda 

March 27, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Commissioner Ramos asked if the church would consider changing the name to Fairfield-Suisun and take care of 

any fence repairs.  Pastor Guevara stated that they hoped to change the name in the future and would take care of 

any fence repairs.   

 

Commissioner Holzwarth asked about the JMJ Management listed as property owner.  Pastor Guevara stated that the 

church is currently in the process of purchasing the property.  

 

Hearing no further comments Chairperson Clemente closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioner Wade moved to approve Resolution No. PC12-01.  Commissioner Ramos seconded the motion.  

Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 

B. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit 

Application No. 11/12-006 to Allow a Warehouse Use and Site Plan/Architectural Review Application No. 

11/12-004 for Exterior Improvements to the Buildings at 1101 Anderson Drive, APN APN 0173-670-320. 
 
John Kearns presented the staff report.  He stated that in 2007 the Planning Commission approved a carwash and 
retail use at 1101 Anderson Drive.  He stated that the project was never completed and the property has been sold.  
He stated that the new property owner/applicant wishes to enclose the portion of the building that houses the 
carwash and use it as a warehouse space.  The applicant also wishes to use approx. 1600 sq. ft as a coffee shop and 
is proposing additional parking. 
 
Greg Lyon, Titan Real Estate and property owner, briefly discussed the type of warehouse uses he foresaw at this 
location.  He indicated that it would be for a small “mom and pop” type businesses where they would need to store 
materials related to their business.  
 
Commission Harris voiced concerns about the type of materials that might be stored there and the traffic flow of the 
businesses that could possibly go in.  
 
Mr. Lyon explained that any business would have to meet existing City code regulations. 
 
John Kearns explained that the code currently lists the types of businesses that are allowed and allowed with a 
conditional use permit and, depending on the business, it might have to come back before the Commission.  He also 
explained that off-site parking would not be allowed. 
 
Hearing no further comments the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
After further discussion the Commissioners agreed to amend the terminology used in the resolution to 
“retail/warehouse use”. 
 
Commissioner Holzwarth moved to approved Resolution No. PC12-02.  Commissioner Wade seconded the motion.  
Motion passed 6-0. 
 
6.  GENERAL BUSINESS:   
 
General Plan Update 
 
Mr. Kearns stated that the General Plan Update should be completed this calendar year.  Ms. Wooden and Mr. 
Kearns have discussed holding at least 3 workshops in the near future.  He further stated that staff hopes to give the 
Commission at least two weeks to review documents prior to any workshop discussions.  Chairperson Clemente 



Planning Commission Agenda 

March 27, 2012 

Page 3 

 

 

 

stated that it would be very beneficial for the Commission to hold discussion with staff before the public workshops. 
Commissioner Mirador concurred. 
 
Mr. Kearns also stated that the landowners for the property southwest of Travis AFB are very interested in 
development potential and are pushing staff for a high level of analysis on this property as part of the General Plan.  
Staff feels there are environmental constraints, that the proximity of Travis AFB is a factor, and the economic 
market feasibility needs to be taken into consideration. 
 
 
7.  COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

A. Staff:    Mr. Kearns stated that the staff reports needed to have information provided that has recently been 

overlooked 1) providing a location map for projects and 2) adding information to the Site Data portion of the report. 

 

Wal-Mart:  Mr. Kearns, Commissioner Clemente, Commissioner Harris, Commissioner Ramos, and Mrs. Ramos 

attended the Regional Water Quality Board hearing, along with many other project supporters.  Wal-Mart was given 

final approval.  Mr. Kearns stated that there is still some additional permitting to be completed with other agencies, 

but the next step will be construction drawing submittals and working with CalTrans on improvements to Hwy 12.  

 

Mr. Kearns and Commissioner Harris reported on the Focus Grant developer panel meeting.  The panel had looked 

at all the vacant parcels in the City with a focus on senior housing sites.  

 

Mr. Kearns reported that the Council was considering a fireworks ordinance at the April 3 meeting which would 

allow up to 3 non-profit groups to sell “safe and sane” fireworks for use in approved locations within the City.  

 

B. Commissioners:  Commissioner Mirador asked about the Bingo hall proposal.  Mr. Kearns stated that a there 

is currently no proposed Bingo hall to be located in the Marina Shopping Center. 

 

Chairperson Clemente inquired about the Grizzly Island Trail and The Salvation Army project.  Mr. Kearns stated 

that Grizzly Island Trail contract had been awarded and the Grand Opening for The Salvation Army was scheduled 

for May 26-28. 

 

C. Agenda Forecast:  Mr. Kearns explained that there are provisions in the City Code for appointing a 

Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson and that item will be on the next agenda. 

 

Mr. Kearns stated that as part of getting rid of the Redevelopment Agency the State Department of Finance 

established an Oversight Board of 7 members and that he has been appointed as one of those members 

 

Mr. Kearns stated that he would be attending the National American Planning Association Conference in 

Hollywood, California during the last week of April.  He is looking forward to the conference and hopes to bring 

back some good information. 

 

8.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 8:34 p.m.  

 

a&m/120327.pca 



PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner 

REVIEWED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 23, 2012 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING: Resolution PC12-___; A 

Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit 

Application No. UP11/12-008: To Amend the Existing Conditions of Approval to Allow Signage 

on the Canopy at 299 Marina Boulevard, APN 0032-411-040 

 

APPLICANT: Stantec Architecture 

   1383 N. McDowell Blvd., Suite 250 

   Petaluma, CA 94954 

 

OWNER:   Diamond Petroleum 

   299 Marina Boulevard 

   Suisun City, CA 94585 
 

SITE DATA: 
 (1) General Plan/Zoning: Service Commercial (CS)/Service Commercial (CS) 

 (2) Site Configuration: 43,244 square feet (Rectangular)  

 (3) Surrounding Land Use: 

      North- Vacant 

South- Vacant (Highway 12) 

West- Vacant 

East- Residential 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: This project is categorically exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15311, Accessory Structures. 

 

BACKGROUND:  In July 1989, the Planning Commission approved a conditional use permit 

for a service station and convenience market at 299 Marina Boulevard.  Condition #5 in the 

resolution states: “No signage shall be installed on the canopy or spandels. Total signage, 

including window signage, shall not exceed 230 square feet”. This calculation included the wall 

signs for the convenience market as well as both monument signs. 

 

Additionally, the Planning Commission approved a canopy expansion in December 2007 for this 

property. However, a building permit has not been issued for this improvement to date. 

 

In Fall 2010, a building permit was issued to increase the height of the base for the monument 

sign along the frontage of Highway 12. A condition of approval required that landscaping be 

installed along the base of the monument sign to soften the appearance of the stucco base. 

Although the monument sign was reconstructed, the required landscaping has not been installed.  

 



Additionally, over a period of time, several trees that were part of the original landscape plan for 

the site have been removed and not replaced. Consequently, the site landscaping does not meet 

the approval requirements.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission require that, prior 

to the addition of signage to the canopy: 

1) The removed trees be replaced 

2) The landscaping be installed around the base of the monument sign 

 

On the positive side, the site has only a few temporary signs and the site is well-kept.  The south- 

facing elevation is free of temporary signs, with the only signs installed an identification wall 

sign and a “24 hour” sign. 

 

STAFF REPORT: The purpose of the submitted application is to amend the Conditions of 

Approval for the existing use permit. Currently, there are two (2) building identification signs 

(AmPm), two (2) building wall signs (24 Hr.), two (2) Arco monument signs with pricing 

information, and two (2) Arco spark logo signs on the existing canopy. There is no proposed 

change to the building identification signs, wall signs, or price signs. The scope proposes to amend 

the existing canopy signs to add two (2) Arco channel-letter signs and three (3) Arco spark logo 

signs for a total of 31 square feet of signage. The additional 31 square feet of signage would 

increase the total on-site signage from 170 square feet to 201 square feet. This is within the total 

square footage for signs approved in the CUP. 

 

Additionally, the applicant is proposing to paint the building.  This is being reviewed at staff 

level through a design review application. 

 

Zoning Ordinance 

 

The proposal conforms with Title 18 “Zoning” of the City of Suisun City Municipal Code and, 

more specifically, Section 18.54 “Signs” of this title.  

 

Required Findings 

 

In order for the Planning Commission to approve the Conditional Use Permit the following 

findings must be made: 

 

1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 

City’s Zoning Ordinance and the purposes of the zoning district in which the site is located 

since it is a commercial location in which commercial signage is anticipated. 

 

2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it 

would be operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan in that the policies 

of the General Plan provide for signage in commercial areas. 

 

3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons 

residing or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to 

properties or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City since it will 

only affect the canopy located on the property in question. 



 

4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15311: Accessory Structures. 

 

5. The conditions of approval will be effective and efficient when placed on this use at this 

location because they will limit size and placement of advertising to ensure consistency with 

city policies. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution PC12-___; A Resolution of the City of 

Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-

008: To Amend the Existing Conditions of Approval to Allow Signage on the Canopy at 299 

Marina Boulevard, APN 0032-411-040 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution PC12-___; A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission 

Approving Conditional Use Permit Application UP11/12-008: To Amend the Existing 

Conditions of Approval to Allow Signage on the Canopy at 299 Marina Boulevard, 

APN 0032-411-040; 

 

2. Location Map 

 

3. Application Materials 



  

RESOLUTION NO. PC12- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION NO. 11/12-008 TO AMEND THE 

EXISTING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL TO ALLOW SIGNAGE ON  

THE CANOPY AT 299 MARINA BOULEVARD, APN 0032-411-040 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at a special meeting on May 23, 2012 did review its 

Conditional Use Permit Application No. 11/12-008 to amend the existing conditions of approval to allow 

signage on the canopy at 299 Marina Boulevard; 

 

 WHEREAS, the public notice was published in the Daily Republic on May 13, 2012; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the recommendations of 

said meeting; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the applicant and members of the public were present to speak on the application; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, The Conditional Use Permit application is exempt from the analysis required by the 

State of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 15311: Accessory Structures; and   

 

 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented at the Public Hearing by City Staff, the applicant, the 

public and Commissioners, the following Findings are hereby made:  

 

In order for the Planning Commission to approve the conditional use permit the following findings must be 

made: 

 

1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the City’s 

Zoning Ordinance and the purposes of the zoning district in which the site is located since it is a 

commercial location in which signage is anticipated. 

 

2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it would be 

operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan in that the policies of the General Plan 

provide for signage in commercial areas. 

 

3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing 

or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to properties or 

improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City since it will only affect the 

canopy located on the property in question. 

 

4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) per Section 15311: Accessory Structures. 

 

5. The conditions of approval will be effective and efficient when placed on this use at this location 

because they will limit size and placement of advertising to ensure consistency with city policies. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of Suisun 

City does hereby adopt Resolution PC12- ; A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission 

Approving Conditional Use Permit Application No. UP11/12-008 to amend the existing conditions of 

approval to allow signage on the canopy at 299 Marina Boulevard, subject to the following Conditions and 

all other Suisun City Codes and Ordinances, state and federal law: 

 



 

 

1. Construction must be in substantial accordance with the plans approved by the Planning 

Commission. 

2. Applicant must obtain a building permit. 

3. The on-site landscaping must be corrected by: 

a. Installing the required “softening” landscaping around the base of the monument sign on 

Highway 12 

b. Restoring site landscaping to prior condition by replanting all removed trees. 

c. Prior to installation, a landscaping plan identifying the location and type of plantings will 

be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Director. 

4. Total signage, including window signage, shall not exceed 230 square feet.  

5. All existing temporary signage that is not considered a window sign must be removed prior to 

installation of new canopy signage and the site must be kept free of temporary signs, banner, and 

flags. 

 

The forgoing motion was made by Commissioner ______ and seconded by Commissioner _____ 

and carried by the folowing vote:  

 

AYES: Commissioners:   

NOES: Commissioners:   

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 23
rd

 day of May 2012 

 

 

 

Anita Skinner 

      Commission Secretary 







N

NORTH

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•











EXISTING DISPENSER GRAPHICSPROPOSED DISPENSER GRAPHICS






	Agenda
	Item 3- Minutes
	Item 5A - 299 Marina Blvd. staff report 
	Resolution
	Location Map
	Application Letter
	Plans


